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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
Shriram Automall India Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Shriram Automall India Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), statement of changes in equity and Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, profit, changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibility of Management for Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
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estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial

statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Compa ny’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in

the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
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or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we

give in the Annexure 1 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
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(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
Annexure 2.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements — Refer Note 31 to the financial statements;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For G. D. Apte & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 100 515W

>
(Saurabh S. Peshwe)

Partner
Membership No. 121546

Place of Signature: ™ wunlaou -
Date: Moy 03, 2014.

R e .
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Annexure - 1 referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements’ of our report of even date to the members of the Company for the year ended March
31, 2019.

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

{vii)

(@) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties
are held in the name of the Company.

The Company does not hold any inventory during the year accordingly, the provisions of
paragraph 3(ii) of the Order, are not applicable to the Company.

As per the books of accounts and records examined and the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to the companies,
firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not granted any loans to its directors or any other persons in whom the director is
interested or given any guarantee or provided any security in connection any loan taken by
director or such other person accordingly the provisions of section 185 of the Act are not

applicable to the Company. The Company has complied with the provisions of section 186 of
the Act, with respect to the investments made.

As per the books of accounts and records examined and the information and explanation
provided by the management, the Company has not accepted any deposits from public.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section
148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company.

(a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, service tax, and other undisputed statutory dues, as applicable, have been
regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company
did not have any dues on account of sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs, duty
of excise and cess.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, service
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tax and other statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2019 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us there are no dues in respect
of sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and value added tax which have

not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute except
for the following:

Period to which Forum where
Nature of Nature of Amount . .
the amount dispute is
Statute Dues (Rs. Lakh) .
relates pending
Income Tax | Income  Tax 2.49 AY 2014-15 CIT (A)
Act, 1961 Demands
Income Tax | Income  Tax 13.79 AY 2016-17 CIT
Act, 1961 Demands
Income Tax | Income  Tax 4.39 AY 2017-18 Under process of
Act, 1961 Demands filing the appeal
before CIT(A)
UP Value Sales Tax 10.50 AY 2014-15 Additional
Added Tax Demand Commissioner —
Grade Il {(Appeal)
Maharashtra | Sales Tax 158.62 | FY2011-12to Deputy
Value Added | Demand 2012- 14 Commissioner of
Tax Sales Tax
(Appeal)
Finance Act, | Service  Tax 48.64 AY 2011-12, Under process
1994 demand 2012-13 for Appeal
before CESTAT

(viii) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to bank. Further, the Com pany has not
borrowed any funds from financial institutions, government or debenture holders.

(ix)  The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of
the Order is not applicable.
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(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on

the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of
our audit.

(xi)  According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration

in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act.

(xii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with

directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act 1934.

For G.D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 100 515W

Saurabh S. Peshwe
Partner

Membership No. 121546
Place: ™ vwnboy ,

Date: Ma7 0%, 1014.
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Annexure 2 referred to in Paragraph 2 (f) under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements’ of our report of even date to the members of the Company for the year ended March
31, 2019.

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Shriram Automall India
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAY’).
These responsibilities include the design, im plementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls

over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Ouraudit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For G.D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 100 515W

PSoun B,

Saurabh s. Peshwe

Partner

Membership No.: 121546
Place: ™M wanlacu .

Date: Mov( 0%, 2014 .
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Shriram Automall India Limited
CIN No.: US0100TN2010PLC074572

Sulance Sheet as at March 31,2019

(Rs. in lacs)

[ Patriculars Note A ARt
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment SA 3,050.67 4.996.52
(b) Other Intangible Assets 5B 32.34 14.32
(¢} Financial Assets
(1) Investments 6 1.476.36 1.535.95
(ii) Loans 7 5,13 3.33
(iii) Other Financial Assets 10 160,00 G2 a2
(d) Non-Current Tax Assets (net) 8 332.49 -
(e) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 9 102.94 1530.01
(1) Other Non-Current Assets 11 53.28 70.86
Total Non-Current Assets 7,213.23 6.863.93
Current assets
(a) Financial Assets
(1) Investments 12 3.346.57 414.73
(ii) Trade Receivables 13 835.97 81740
(1ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 14 63525 36612
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 15 2,75 1.86
(v) Loans 7 292749 284213
(vi) Other Financial Assets 10 75.98 60 49
(b) Other Current Assets 11 354,91 206.72
Total Current Assets 8,198.92 4.909.45
Total Assets 15,412.15 11,773.38
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 16 3.600.00 3.000.00
(b) Other Equity 17 6.515.08 3.486.28
Total Equity 9,515.08 0.480.28
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Provisions 18 132.13 -
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade Payables 19 519241 1.362.9]
(i1) Other Financial Liabilities 20 109.33 -
(b) Other Current Liabilities 21 436.04 490,10
(¢) Provisions 18 27.16 234,00
Total Current Liabilities 5.764.94 5,287.10
Total Equity and Liabilities 15,412.15 11,773.38
Significant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For G. D. Apte & Co.
ICAl Firm Registration No. 100515W

Chartered Accountants b\') VA

M k
/"”( I’ "\ / ?

Saurabh S, Peshwe B4

Partner A

Membership No : 121546

Pluce: Mumbai
Dure : May, 07 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Shriram Automall India Limited /

)

/ Z*’”‘Z?/

Sameer Malhotra
CEO and Whole Time Lhrector
DIN: 01029645

S. Lakshminarayanan
Chairman
[DIN: 02808098

Satish Kumar Garg
Chief Financial Officer

Nitin Lokhande
Company Seeretary

Place: Mumbai
Date @ May, 07 2019



Shriram Automall India Limited
CIN No.: US0100TN2010PLC074572

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Rs. in facs)

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

Particul Note N
artieuars ote o March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Income
Revenue from Operations 22 13.367.24 10.528.42
Other Income 23 398.20 331.35
Total Income 13,765.44 10,859.97
Expenses
Employee Benefits Expense 24 3.666.72 3.884.91
Finance Costs 25 - 10,42
Depreciation and Amortisation 105.26 83.63
Other Expenses 26 4.469.48 3.766.63
Total Expense 10,241.47 7,747.63
Profit Before Tax 3,523.98 3,112.34
Tax Expense
Current Tax 942,18 1.080.47
Deferred Tax 47.07 (3.35)
Total Tax Expense / (Income) 990.25 1,075.12
Profit for the year 2,333.73 2,037.22
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
(A) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(B) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation Income tax o .
4 ; (26.33) (1.03)
relating to this
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit 77
or loss T
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of income tax (18.80) (1.03)
Total Comprehensive Income for the_year (comprising 2.514.92 2.036.17
Profit/(Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the year)
Earnings Per Share
Basic (Rs.) 32 8.45 6.79
Diluted (Rs.) 8.45 6.79
Nominal value of equity share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00
Significant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For G. D. Apte & Co.
ICAI Firm Registration No. 100515W
Chartered Accountants A

Ao
Vo5

Saurabh 8. Peshwe
Partner

Membership No : 121346

Place: Mumbai
Date : May, 07 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Shriram Automall India Limited

-
~N o
S. Lakshminarajanan
Chairman

DIN: 02808698 <

Satish Kumar Garg
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date : May, 07 2019

‘ompany Secretary




Shriram Automall India Limited
CIN No.: US0100TN2010PLC074572

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Rs. in lacs)

Particulars

For the Year ended
March 31, 2019

For the Year ended
March 31, 2018

A. Cash flow from Operating Activities
Profit Before Tax

3.523.98 3.112.34
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amortisation 103.26 85.63
(Profit)/loss on sale of assets (net) 0.01 13.12
(Profit)/loss on sale of investments - (4.50)
Employees stock option compensation cost 513.87 (31.14)
[nterest income (289.42) (307.23)
Provision for doubtful advance - 17.835
Provision for gratuity - (22.32)
Provision for leave encashment - 6.41
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 3,853.70 2,870.18
Changes in Working Capital:
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Decrease/(increase) in non-current loans (1.80) (0.93)
Decrease/(increase) in current loans (85.36) 59.25
Decrease/(increase) in other non-current financial assets (65.99) 290.22
Decrease/(increase) in other current financial Assets 9.64 (0.32)
Decrease/(increase) in other non-current assets 17.58 7.35
Decrease/(increase) in other current assets (148.19) (91.47)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables (38.37) (23.60)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 629,50 1.064.,42
Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities 109.33 (11.03)
[ncrease/(decrease) in other current liabilities (34.00) 182.08
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 14.12
Cash Generated from Operations 423991 4,346.11
Direct taxes paid for current year (net of refunds) (1.383.39) (1.064.69)
Net Cash from/(used in) Operating Activities (A) 2,8506.53 3,281.42
B. Cash flows from Investing Activities
Proceeds from Maturity of Sub-Debts 208.21 22.78
Investment in Sub-Debts (177.19) (165.59)
Investment in Subsidiaries (4.50) (1.300.00)
Investment in Mutual Funds (2.898.76) (250.00)
Decrease / (Increase) in Bank balances (0.89) (0.07)
Purchase of Fixed, Including Intangible Assets (178.60) (65.34)
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets 1.21 0.89
Profit on Sale of Investments - 4.50
Interest on Fixed Deposits/Inter-Corporate/subordinated debt 263.20 321.24
Net Cash from/(used in) Investing Activities (B) (2,787.39) (1,431.59)
C. Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Dividend paid - (1,200.00)
Tax on dividend - (244.29)
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities (C) - (1,444.29)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 69.14 405.54
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 366.12 160.58
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 635.25 566.12
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(Rs. in lacs)

Cemponents of Cash and Cash Equivalents As at March 31,2019 As at March 31, 2018
Cash and cash Equivalents at the End of the Year
i) Cash on hand 118.03 86.32
ii) Balances with scheduled banks in:

Current accounts 31720 479.80
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents (note 14) 635.25 566.12
Significant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
{ All amounts are in [ndian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise siaied)
1. General Information:

Shriram Automall India Limited ("the Company") is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act,
1956. The registered office of the copany is located at Mookambika Complex. 3rd Floor, No.4, Lady Desika Road. Mylapore, Chennai - 600 004

The Company is engaged in facilitating the buyers/sellers to sell their trucks and commercial vehicles. It provides refurbishment of pre-owned vehicles,
automalls and electronic truck bazaars. The Company operates as a subsidiary of MXC Solutions India Private Limited

2. Applicability of new and revised Ind AS:

All the Indian Accounting Standards issued and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended) till the financial statements are authorized have been considered in preparing these financial statements. There are no other Indian
Accounting Standards that have been issued as at March 31, 2018 but were not mandatorily effective except as stated below

Recent Accounting Pronouncements - Recent Standards Issued but not effective

On Mareh 28, 2018,the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contract with Customers and certain amendments 1o
existing Ind AS, These amendments shall be applicable to the Company from April 01, 2018.

Ind AS 115, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" establishes a single comprehensive model for entities (o use in accounting for revenue arising from
contract with customers. Ind AS 115 will supersede the current revenue recognition standard Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11 Construction contracts
when it becomes effective, The core Principle of Ind AS 115 is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services, Specifically, the
standard introduces a 3-step approach to revenue recognition :

Step | : Identify the contract{s) with a customer

Step 2 Identify the performance obligation in contract

Step 3 : Determine the transaction Price

Step 4 : Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligation in the contracts
Step 5 | Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Under Ind AS 115, an entity recognizes revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.¢. when “control™ of the goads or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer. The company is carrying out the evaluation of the possible impact of Ind AS 115 and
will adopt the standard from April 01, 2018, being its effective date.

Improvements and other amendments to Indian Accounting Standards applicable after March 31, 2018

The MCA has also carried out amendments of the following Indian Accounting Standards -

Ind AS 40 - Investment Property
Principle for transfer of asset to, or from, Investment Property.

Ind AS 21 - The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
Determination of exchange rate for translation of foreign currency where a pre-payment asset or a deferred income liability is recognized.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

Segregation of deductible temporary differences in accordance with tax laws and assessing them an that basis to recagnise deferred tax ussel

Ind AS 28 - Investment in Associates and Joint Venture

Permitting election of fair value or equity methed of accounting for investments in associates and joint ventures by venture capital .mutual fund and other
similar organisations,

Ind AS 112 - Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities
Applicability of disclosure requirements to interests classified as held for sale or as discontinued operation.

Application of above standards are not expected to have any significant impact on the Company’s Financial Statements.
3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies :

3.1 Statement of compliance

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS™) noulied under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. The accounting policies as set out below have been applied consistently w all vears presented i
these standalone financial statements. The Company has adepted Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS™) notilied under the Companies
Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 with effect from 1 April 2016,

3/"
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3.2 Basis of preparation and presentation

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values at the
end-of each reporting period, as explained in accounting policies below Historical cost 15 generally based on the fur value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between markel participants al the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1.2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs 1o the
fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are deseribed us follows

(1) Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date

(i) Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability. either direetly or indireetly: and
(i11) Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair
value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same
level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement,

The principal accounting policies are set out below:
3.3 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease, transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, All other
leases are classified as operating lease,

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as Assets of the Company at their fair value al the inception of the lease or, i lower, al the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation,

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss. unless they are directly attributable 10
qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized, Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset, However. if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the
end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term excepl where
another systematic basis is more representative of time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed
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3.4 Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals
or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The
cash flows are segregated into operating, investing and financing activities based on the extent of information available.

3.5 Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax

3.5.1 Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from *profit before tax” as reported in the Statement of Profit and
Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s
current tax is calculated using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

3.5.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Financial Statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it 15 no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized,

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability would be settled or the assel
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting peried.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at
the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrving amount of its assets and liabilities

3.5.3 Current and deferred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax expense is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. the current and deferred tax are also recognised i other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

3.5.4 Minimum Alternate Tax

Minimum Alternate Tax("MAT"™) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay
normal inceme tax during the specified period. In the year, in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset in accordance with the
provisions contained in the Guidance Note issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). the said asset is created by way ol a credit to the
Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each Balance Sheet date and writes down the

carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convineing evidence that the Company will pay normal Income Tax during the
specified period.

3.6 Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Property, plant and equipments are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, The cost of fixed assets comprises the
purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable) and includes interest
on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying fixed assets up to the date the asset is readv for s intended use and other incidental expenses
incurred up to that date. Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalised only if such expenditure results in an increase in
the future benefits from such asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. Any part or components of property, plant and equipments
which or separately identifiable and expected to have a useful life which is different from that of the main assets are capitalised separately, based on the
technical assessment of the management.

Capital work in progress represents projects under which the property, plant and equipment’s are not vet ready for their intended use and are carried at cost
determined as aforesaid,

3.6.1 Depreciation
Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset. or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value,

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment has been provided on the straight-line method as per the useful lives prescribed in Schedule Il 1o the
Companies Act, 2013,

Individual assets costing less than Rs. 5,000 each are depreciated in the year of purchase considering the type and usage pattern of these assels,
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Leasehold improvement is amortised over the lease term subject to a maximum of 60 months except the Leasehold civil work, which is amortised over the
lease term.

Depreciation on assets acquired/sold during the year is recognised on a pro-rata basis to the Statement of Profit and Loss (il the date ol acquisition/sale

3.7 Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses,
Amortisation is recognised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period. with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for an prospective basis.

An Intangible assets is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from use of disposal. Gans or losses anising from
derecognition of an intangible assets is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset and 1s
recognised in the Statement of profit or loss,

Amortisation

Intangible assets are amortized over the estimated useful life on straight line method. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for Intangible
Assets with a finite useful life are reviewed at each reporting date,

3.8 Operating Segment

Operating segments reflect the Company's management structure and the way the financial information is regularly reviewed by the Company's Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM considers the business from both business and product perspective based on the dominant source. nature
of risks and returns and the internal organisation and management structure, The operating segments are the segments for which separate financial
information is available and for which operating profit / (loss) amounts are evaluated regularly by the executive Management in deciding how 1o allocate
resources and in assessing performance.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the Company. Segment revenue, segment expenses,
segment assets and segment liabilities have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the seument

Revenue, expenses. assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to segments on reasonable basis, are included under
unallocated revenue / expenses / assets / liabilities,

3.9 Revenue recognition

Buyer / Seller Facilitation Fees
Income from buyer/seller facilitation fees/income Irom services are recoanised as per the terms of the contract on an acerual basis. Service Lax on lees Is
collected by the Company as an intermediary and accordingly revenue is presented on net basis

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured

Other Income

Dividend from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment is established and it is probable that the economic benelits will
flow to the Company and the amount can be measured reliably.

Interest from financial assets is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and al the effective interest rate applicable. which is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset (o that asset's nel carrying amount on initial
recognition,

Profit/loss on the sale of investments is computed on the basis of weighted average cost of investments and recognised at the ume ol actual
sale/redemption,

3.10 Employee Benefits

Employee benefits are accrued in the period in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Company. as detailed below:

Defined contribution plans

The Company's contribution to State Governed provident fund scheme, Employee State Insurance scheme and Employee pension scheme are considered as
defined contribution plans and expenses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss based on the amount of contribution required to be made and
when services are rendered by the employees.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benelit plans and the present value of the defined benefit obligation are recognised based on actuarial valuation as on the balance
sheet date using the projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in
the future. These include the determination of the discount rate. future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexites invalved m the
valuation ad its long term nature. a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive 10 changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

The Company accrues for liability towards Gratuity which is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation under such defined benefit plan is
determined based on actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date, using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in
the statement of Other comprehensive income in the period in which they oceur and are not deferred.

Short Term benefits

Short term employee benefits al the Balance Sheet date. including short term compensated absences. are recognized as an expense as per the Company's
scheme based on expected obligations on an undiscounted basis.

Long term employee benefits

The Company accounts for its liability towards long term compensated absences based on the actuarial valuation done as at the Balance Sheet date by an
independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
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3.17 Government grants

Government grants,including non-monetary grants at fair value.are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with
the conditions attached to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants whose primary condition is that the Company should purchase. construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets and non-monetary
grants are recognised and disclosed as “deferred income” as non-current liability in the Balance Sheet and translerred 1o the Statement of’ P
on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

rofit and Loss

3.11 Share Based Payments
Equity-settled share based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the CqQUItY tstruments at the grant
date. Details regarding the determination of the fair value of equitysettled share based payments transactions are set oul in Note 27 3.

3.12 Finance Cost

Borrowing costs include exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment 1o the interest
cost. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets. A
qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use,

[nterest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifving assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period for which they are incurred.
3.13 Financial instruments
3.13.1 Financial assets

A. Classification -

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

a) those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income. or through profit or loss), and
b) those measured at amortised cost

The classification is done depending upon the Company”s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows
For assets classified as “measured at fair value’, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. as elected. For

assets classified as *measured at amortised cost’, this will depend on the business model and contractual terms of the cash [Tows.

B. Initial measurement

All Financial Assets are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable 10 the acquisition or issue of Financial Assets.
which are not at Fair Value Through Profit or Less, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognmition. Purchase and sale of Financi
recognised using trade date accounting,

al Assets are

C. Subsequent Measurement

a) Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost (AC) - A Financial Asset is measured at Amortised Cost if it Is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

b) Financial Assets measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) - A Financial Assel is measured at FVTOCI if it is held
within a business model whose abjective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling Financial Assets and the contractual terms of the
Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

¢) Financial Assets measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) - A Financial Asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are
measured at FVTPL,

D. Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures

Interest in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures are recognised at cost, Cost represents amount paid for acquisition of the said investments

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period, if there are any indications that the said investments may be impaired. If so. the Company
estimates the recoverable value/amount of the investment and provides for impairment, if any i.e. the deficit in the recoverable value over cost,

E. Other Equity Investments
All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. except for those equity investments
for which the Company has elected 1o present the value changes in *Other Comprehensive Income”
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E. Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses Expected Credit Loss” (ECL) model. for evaluating impairment ol Financial Assets other than those
measured at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL).

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal Lo

* The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date); or

« Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the life of the financial instrument)

For Trade Receivables the Company applies “simplified approach’ which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables. The Company uses historical default rates to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of trade receivables. Ay every reporting date these
historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed.

For other assets, the Company uses 12 month ECL to provide for impairment loss where there is no significant increase in credit risk. If there is signilicant
increase in credit risk full lifetime ECL is used.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or the rights 1o receive cash

flows from the financial asset have expired, Where the entity has transferred an assel, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial assel is derecognised.

3.13.2 Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument,

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company afler dedueting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are initially recognised at the value of the respective contractual vbhigations. They are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any discount or premium on redemption/settlement is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as [nance
cost over the life of the liability using the effective interest method and adjusted to the liability figure disclosed in the Balance Sheet

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss il incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument,

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are initially measured at their fair values and. if not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently
measured at the higher of

a, the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109; and

b. the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with the principles of [nd AS 18

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial bability 18
replaced by anather from the same lender on substantially different terms. or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified. such an exchange
or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The dilTerence in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amount and it intends, either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneous)y

3.14 Earnings Per Share .

Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period adjusted for treasury shares held,
Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted-average number of equity and dilutive equivalent shares outstanding during the period, using
the treasury stock method for options and warrants, except where the results would be anti-dilutive,

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any splits and bonus shares
issues including for change effected prior to the approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors,

3.15 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets - Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that any Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets or group
of Assets, called Cash Generating Units (CGU) may be impaired. ITany such indication exists. the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU s estimated 10
determine the extent of impairment. if any. When 1t 1s not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an mdividual assel. the Company estimales (he
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs

An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extenl. asset’s carrving amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value in use Value in use 1s based on the estimated future cash lows.
discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the
assets. The impajement loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amg

/
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3.16 Provisions , Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,

I the effect of the time value of money is material. provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that refleets. when appropriate. the risks specitic
to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recogmsed as a finance cost,
Contingent assets are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts, unless possibility of an outflow of resources embodying,
economic benefit is remote,

3.19.7 Equity investments at FYTOCI
The Company has designated investments in equity as at FVTOCI on the basis of facts and circumstances that existed at the transition date,

3.17 First-time adoption-mandatory exceptions, optional exemptions

3.17.1 Overall principle -

The Company has prepared the opening balance sheet as per Ind AS as of April 1. 2016 (the transition date} by recognising all assets and habilities whose
recognition is required by Ind AS. not recognising items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by Ind AS. by reclassilving certain items from
Previous GAAP to Ind AS as required under the Ind AS. and applying Ind AS in the measurement of recognised assets and liabilines

However. this principle is subject to certain mandatory exceptions and certain optional exemptions availed by the Company as detailed below

3.17.2 Derecognition of financial assets and liabilites -

The Company has applied the derecognition requirements of financial assets and financial liabilities prospectively for transactions occurring on or afler
April 1, 2016 (the transition date),

3.17.3 Impairment of financial assets -

The Company has applied the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively: however, as permitied by Ind AS 101, 11 has used reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort 1o determine the credil risk at the date that financial instruments were injtally
recognised in order to compare it with the credit risk at the transition date. Further. the Company has not undertaken an exhaustive search for information
when determining, at the date of transition to Ind ASs, whether there have been significant increases in credit risk smee iniual recognition, as permutted by
Ind AS 101

3.17.4 Deemed cost for PPE. investment property and intangible assets -

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets recognised as of April 1.
2016 (transition date) measured as per the Previous GAAP and used that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

3.17.5 Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease -

The Company has applied Appendix C of Ind AS 17 "Leases’ for determining whether an arrangement contains a Lease at the transition date on the basis
af

facts and circumstances existing at that date

3.17.6 Investments in subsidiaries and associates -

The Company has elected to carry its investments in subsidiaries and associates at deemed cost being carrving amount under Previous GAAP on the
transition date,

4. Critical accounting assumptions :

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
results of operations during the reporting period end. Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and
actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

In particular. information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements pertain to:

4.1 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

The Company has estimated useful life of each class ol assets based on the nature of assets. the estimated usage of the asset. the operating condition of the
asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes. ete. The Company reviews the carrving amount of property. plant and equipment and
Intangible assets at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods

Depreciation on Property Plant and Equipment is provided pro-rata for the periods of use on the straight line method (SLM ) on the basis of useful life of
the property, plant and equipment mandated by Part C of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013 or the usetul life determined by the company based on
technical evaluation, whichever is lower, 1aking into account the nature of the asset. the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions ol the asset,
past history of replacement, maintenance support, as per details given below:

Estimated useful life of the Property, Plant and Equipment are as follows -

AEEEt Useful life as prescribed by schedule IT | Usetul life estimarted I)_\'q
i of the Companies Act. 2013 company

Building I G0 years GO vears B
Building - fence S vears S years
Carpeted road 10 years 10 years
Plant and equipment 15 vears 15 vears
Computers - server & nenwork 6 veurs & years ﬁ_ 3
Compurters - laprop. desktop 3 years M
Furniture and fixmres 10 years 10 yvears
Vehicles 10 years 10 yvears
Qffice equipments 5 vears 5 years
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Amortisation is provided on Straight Line Method (*SLM’), which reflect the management’s estimate of the useful life of the intangible asset

Computer Software - 33.33 %
Trademarks - 10 %

4.2 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists. the Company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount 15 the higher of an asset’s or Cash Generating Units (CGU's) far value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent ol those
from other assets or a groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. the asset 15 considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount.

[n assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining [air value less costs of dispesal. recent market transactions are
taken into account, if no such transactions ean be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

4.3 Impairment of Financial Assets
The impairment provisions for Financial Assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected cash loss rates. The Company uses judgement

in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation. based on Company’s past history. existing market conditions as well
as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

4.4 Recoverability of Trade Receivables
Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining whether a provision against those receivables 1s

required. Factors considered include the credit rating of the counterparty. the amount and timing of anticipated future payments and any possible actions
that can be taken to mitigate the risk of non-payment,

4.5 Provisions

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outllow of funds resulting from past operations
or events and the amount of cash cutflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the lHability requires the application of
Judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change. The carrying amounts of pravisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly
and revised to take account of changing facts and circumstances.

4.6 Claims and Contingent Liabilities

The Company has ongoing litigations with various regulatory autharities and third parties. Where an outflow of funds 15 believed to be probable and a
reliable estimate of the outcome of the dispute can be made based on management’s assessment of specific circumstances of cach dispute and relevant
external advice, management provides for its best estimate of the liability. Such accruals are by nature complex and can take number of years to resolve
and can involve estimation uncertainty. Information about such litigations is provided in notes to the financial statements.

4.7 Acturial Valuation - Defined benefit obligation (DBO)

The determination of Company’s liability towards defined benefit obligation to employees is made through independent actuarial valuation ineluding
determination of amounts to be recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and in other comprehensive income. Such valuation depend upon
assumptions determined afier taking into account inflation, medical cost trends, mortality. discount rate. seniority. promotion and other relevant lactors
such as supply and demand factors in the employment market and anticipation of future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may impact the
DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses. Information about such valuation is provided in notes to the financial statements.
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(Rs. in Iacs)

Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2019

A. Equity Share Capital
Particulars Amount
Balance as at March 31, 2017 3,000.00
Changes in equity share capital -
Balance as at March 31, 2018 3,000.00
Changes in equity share capital -
Balance as at March 31, 2019 3,000.00
B. Other Equity
Equity component Reserves and Surplus ‘Other itemS-; shOfthier
of Financial Comprehensive Income
Particulars Total
Instrument - Retained Share Option Remeasurement of
Guarantee Earnings Outstanding | defined benefit obligation
Balance as at March 31, 2017 3.48 2,873.61 31.14 15.21 2,923.44
Balance as at April 1, 2017 3.48 2,873.61 31.14 15.21 2.923.44
Profit for the year - 2,037.22 - - 2,037.22
Dividends - (1.200.00) - - (1.200.00)
Tax on Dividend - (244.29) - - (244.29)
Cancellation of Employee Stock Options - - (31.14) - (31.14)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 3.48 3,466.54 = 15.21 3,485.23
Other Comprehensive Loss - - 1.03 .03
Transfer to Retained Earnings -
Balance as at March 31, 2018 3.48 3,466.54 - 16.26 3,486.28
Balance as at April 1, 2018 3.48 3,466.54 - 16.26 3,486.28
Dividends
Profit for the year 2.333.73 2.533.73
Employee Stock Option 313.87 313.87
Deemed Equity
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 3.48 6,000.27 513.87 16.26 6,533.88
Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) {18.80) (18.80)
Transfer to Retained Earnings -
Balance as at March 31, 2019 3.48 6,000.27 513.87 (2.54) 6,515.08

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

For G. D. Apte & Co.
ICAI Firm Registration No. 100515W
Chartered Accountants

¥ [
Saurabh S. Peshwe ‘

Partner
Membership No : 121546

Place: Mumbai
Date : May, 07 2019

-

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Shriram Automall India Limited

) ~
S. Lakshmiglarayanan

Chairman
DIN: 02808698

Place: Mumbai
Date : May, 07 2019
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Shriram Automall India Limited
Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

6

Non-Current Investments

Partiucalrs

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

[nvestment in Equity Shares

(Rs. in la

Cs)

1.304.50 1.300.00
Investment in Sub-Ordinated Debts 171.86 235,95
Total 1,476.36 1,535.95
5 ) Face value per As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31,2018
Particulars

unit Rs.

Quantity

Amount

Quantity

Amount

Investments -(Unquoted, fully paid up)

Investment in equity shares of wholly owned subsidiary
Adroit Inspection Services Private Limited
CarTrade Exchange Solutions Private Limited
(erstwhile Motogo India Pvt Ltd)

Investment in Subordinated Debts
Shriram Transport Finance Company Limited (Holding
Company till February, 06, 2018)
Shriram City Union Finance Limited

10

1.000
1.000

2.17.020.00
45.000.00

10.472.00
4.588.00

1,300.00

4.50

124,13

47.73

2.17.014

14.429

0.038

1.300.(

n

Total

1,476.36

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

1.476.36

Note:

Categorisation of Investments - as per Ind AS 109 Classification

Particulars

Amount

Amount

Financial Assets measured initailly at Fair value then at
amortised cost

171.86

1.535.95

Financial Assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

1,304.50

v?/‘
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

7

8

(Rs. in lacs)

Loans
i As at March 31,2019 As at March 31,2018
Particulars = -
Non-Current Current Non-Current Current

Inter-Corporate Deposit paid to Holding Company 2.595.00 - 2.835.00
Advances Recoverable From Subsidiary 323.59
Loans to Employees
Unsecured, Considered Good 5115 8.90 3.35 713
Unsecured, Considered Doubtful 6.24 - 6.24

515 15.14 3.35 13.37
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Loans - (6.24) - (6.24)

515 8.90 3.33 7.13

|

Total 5.15 2,927.49 335 2,842.13 |

Non-Current Tax Assets (net)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31,2018

Non-Current

Current

Non-Current

Current

Advance Income Tax (net of provision for taxation) 332.49 - -
(net of provision for income tax of Rs. 201.45 lacs (March 31, 2018:
Rs. NIL)
Total 332.49 -
/’/.7 (\o
‘________) /—
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Rs. in lacs)
9  Deferred tax assets (net)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Deferred tax asset

Fixed asset: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation /

amortisation charged S Ll
Expenses disallowed under Income Tax Act, 1961 -

Defined benefit Obligations - Gratutity and Leave encashment 38.66 42.80
Allowance for Doubtful Trade receivables and advances - 25.17
Other items 23.54 20.08
Total Deferred tax assets (A) 102.94 150.01

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Timing difference on account of ;

Differences in depreciation in block of fixed assets as per tax books and financial
books T )

Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to set-off Provisions (B) - -
Net Deferred tax assets (A-B) 102.94 150.01

Significant Component of Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) recognized in Financial Statements

Détiied benstit Allowance for Doubtful
Particulars Depreciation L Trade receivables and Other Items
Obligations
advances
As at April 01, 2017
Charged/(Credited)
- to Statement of Profit and Loss 61.96 42,80 25.17 20,08
- to Other Comprehensive Income
As at March 31, 2018 61.96 42.80 25.17 20.08
Charged/(Credited)
- to Statement of Profit and Loss (21.22) (4.14) (25.17) 346
- to Other Comprehensive [ncome
As at March 31, 2019 40.74 38.60 - 23.54

& — Q/ @

- /
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

10 Other Financial Assets

11

(Rs. in lacs)

; As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Particulars
Non-current Current Non-current Current
Unsecured, considered good
Security Deposits 147.44 (7.37) 81.16 2.07
Fixed deposit with banks where original maturity is more than 12- i i 0.29 i
months o
[nterest Accrued on Fixed Deposits with Banks 0.10 - .08
Interest Accrued on Sub-Ordinated Debt 12.50 12.56 11,47 8.06
Interest receivable from subsidiary - 27.70 -
Interest Accrued on Inter-corporate Deposit - 43,19 - 50.28
|
Total 160.00 75.98 92.92 | 60.49

Other Non-current / Current assets

. As at March 31,2019 As at March 31,2018
Particulars |
Non-current Current Non-current Current
Advances
To Employees for Travelling, Expenses & Others - 37.60 20.68
To Vendors - 47.20 - 36.81
To Statutory Autohorities 46.13 - 26.83 11.08
Unsecured, Considered Good -
Deferred Lease Rentals - 74.27 43.46 7.48
Other Assets - Unsecured, considered good
Goods & Service Tax Credit (input) Receivable 154.05 - 0532
Service Tax Credit (Including earlier years) 19.26 - 19.26
Prepaid Expenses 7.13 22.53 0.57 19.51
Plan Asset - Gratuity (net of provision for gratuity of Rs. 5.01 i i 17,58
(March 31, 2017 Rs. Nil ) -
Total 53.28 354.91 70.86 206.72

7/
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

12 Current Investments

(Rs. in lacs)

Particulars At A3 8t
March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Investment in Sub-Ordinated Debts 197.80 164.73
Investment in Mutual Funds 3.148.70 250.00
Total 3,346.57 414.73
R Face value per Quantity Amount Quantity Amount
Particulars ;
unit Rs. As at March 31,2019 As at March 31,2018
Investments -(Unquoted, fully paid up)
Investment in Subordinated Debts
Shriram Transport Finance Company Limited (Holding
; = . 2,217 133.2 262 ).40
Company till February, 06, 2018) 1,000 A1 33.24 oz a4
Shriram City Union Finance Limited 1.000 5,163 64.56 4.547 54.33
Current investments (Valued at Fair Value)
Quoted: Investment in mutual funds
Axis Liquid Fund - Direct Growth 10 [.51.856 3.148.76 3.144 250.00
(Purchased during the year)
Total 3,346.57 414.73
Categorisation of Investments - as per Ind AS 109 Classification
Particulars As at As at
g March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
Financial Assets measured initailly at Fair value then at amortised cost 197.80 164.73
Financial Assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 3.148.76 250.00

\,) ‘s
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

13 Trade Receivables

(Rs. in laes)

Particulars

As at
March 31,2019

As at
March 31,2018

Unsecured, Considered Good

Secured. Considered Good
Unsecured, Considered Good

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for payment

835.97 817.40
Unsecured, Considered Doubtful | 23.38 74.05
879.35 891.45
Allowance for Credit Loss (23.38) (74.05)
855.97 817.40
Total 855.97 817.40
Note:
1) The average credit period on yard rent is 30 days
2) Ageing of trade receivables

. As at As at
Farticulars March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Less than 30 Days 0656.54 48840
Greater than 30 Less than 90 068.1 87.64
Greater than 90 Days Less than 180 50.37 3203
Greater than 180 Days Less than 365 104.35 283.18
Total 879.35 891.45
Movement of Impairment for doubtful receivables:

. As at As at
UBitasalass March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Balance at beginning of the year 74.05 56.20
Addition during the year (50.67) 7.85
Balance at end of the year 23.38 74.03

7

“
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

14

15

Cash and bank balances

(Rs. in lags)

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2018

Particulars -
Non-current Current Non-current Current
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with Scheduled Banks in:
Current accounts - 317.20 - 479.80
Cash in Hand - 118.03 - 86.32
- 635.25 - 566.12

Other Bank balances

Particulars

As at March 31,2018

As at March 31, 2018

Non-current Current Non-current Current
Other Bank Balances
Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months - - -
Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 5 5% |86
12 months # — it
Total - 2.75 1.86 |

# Includes deposits of Rs 0.71 lacs (March 31, 2018, Rs 0.71 lacs) pledged with VAT authorities.

\7/




Shriram Automall India Limited
Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

(Rs. in lacs)

16 Equity Share Capital

Particulars As at As at
A March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Authorised
3 20 < o ity Shares "Rs =
100,000,000 (March 31. 2018: 100.000.000). Equity Shares of Rs. 10.000.00 10.000.00
10/- each
10,000.00 10,000.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares
. 201R- ; . 1
30,000,000 (March 31, 2018: 30,000,000). Equity Shares of Rs. 10/ 3.000.00 3.000.00
each
Total 3,000.00 3,000.00

a) Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at end of reporting period:

. As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Particulars - - -
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 3.00.00.000 3.000.00 3.00.00.000 3.000.00
Movement during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 3,00,00,000 3.000.00 3,00,00,000 3.000.00

b) Terms/Rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of shares referred te as equity shares having a par value of Rs, 10/-, Each holder of equity shares is entitled 10 one vole
per share. The dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.

During the year ended March 31, 2018, the amount of per equity share dividend recognised as distributions (o equity shareholders was Rs. 4.00. Out of
the total dividend declared during the year ended March 31, 2018, amount of interim dividend paid was Rs. 4.00 per equity share.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets ol the Company. aller
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number ol equity shares held by the sharcholders.
¢) Shares reserved for issue under options

The Company has reserved 26.08.696 Equity Shares for issue under the employee stock option scheme 2018 out of which 19,79.348 Equity Shares are
granted to employees as on 31st March 2019 as detailed hereunder:

d) There are no equity shares allotted as fully paid up bonus shares or pursuant to contracts without payment being received in cash. No equity shares
have been bought back.

e) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:

As at March 31,2019 As at March 31, 2018
Name of the shareholder . X ) X .
Number of shares % holding Number of shares % holding
MXC Solutions India Private Limited (Holding Company) 1.66.30.435 35.44% 1.66.30.435 55.44%
Shriram Transport Finance Company Limited and its nominees 1.33.69.565 44.56% 1.33.69.365 44.56%
Total 3,00,00,000 100.00% 3,00,00,000 100.00%




Shriram Automall India Limited
Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

17 Other Equity

(Rs. in lacs)

Particulars

As at
March 31,2019

As at
March 31,2018

Stock option outstanding

Employee Stock Option Outstanding 513.87
Closing balance 513.87 -
Retained earnings

Balance as per last account 3.4806.28 2.892.30

Add: Profit for the current year 2.333.73 2.037.22

Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation, net of tax (18.80) 1.03
Less: Appropriations

[nterim dividend [amount per share Rs. 4.00 (March 31.2017: Rs, Nil)] - (1.200.00)|

Tax on interim dividend - (244.29)|
Total appropriations - (1.444.29)
Net Retained earnings 6,001.20 3.486.28
Total 6,515.08 3.,486.28

\7/




Shriram Automall India Limited
Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Rs. in lacs)
18 Provisions

. As at March 31,2019 As at March 31,2018
Particulars . 2
Non-Current Current Non-Current Current

For Employee Benefits

For Gratuity (Refer Note No 27) - 18.73 -
For Leave Encashment and Availment 132.13 8.43 118.65
For others

For Income Tax
(net of advance tax of Rs.NIL (March 31. 2018: Rs.115.44 lacs)

- - 2 115.44

Total 132.13 2716 - 234.09
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

19

20

21

Trade Payables (at FYTPL)

(Rs. in lacs)

Particulars

As at
March 31,2019

As at
March 31,2018

Sundry Creditors other than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
for expenses

1.822.38 1.592 .48

for others # 3.370.03 297043
Dues to Micro Enterprises and Small enterprises (Refer note 19.1) - -

Total 5,192.41 4.562.91

# includes dues to Shriram Transport Finance Company Limited (Holding Company till February. 06. 2018) of Rs. 12.31 lacs (March 31, 2017: Rs. 15,53

lacs)

Note 19.1 - As at 31 March, 2019 and 31 March. 2018, based on and to the extent of information available with the Company regarding the registration of’
suppliers as Micro and Small Enterprises under the Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006, there are no amounts outstanding in

respect of these suppliers.

Other Financial Liabilities
Particulars Ay at i
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Temporary credit balance in bank accounts 109.33
Total 109.33
Other Current Liabilities
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2019

March 31,2018

Sundry Creditors other than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
for Fixed Assels

(9.27) 11,75

Other Liabilities
Income Tax Deducted at Source 48.12 30.75
Goods & Service tax Payable 262.24 135.88
Statutory Dues pertaining to Employees 36.87 .22
Employee Benefit Payable 98.08 200.50
Total 436.04 490.10

\7/
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Shriram Automall India Limited
Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

22

23

24

Revenue from Operations

{IRs. in lags)

Particulars

For the Year ended
March 31,2019

For the Year ended
March 31,2018

Buyer / Seller Facilitation Fees
Rental Income

12.840.16
327.08

10.048.99
479.43

Total

13,367.24

10,528.42

Other Income

Particulars

For the Year ended
March 31,2019

For the Year ended
March 31,2018

Interest on Deposits with Bank

0.18 14.38 |
Profit on Sale of Current Investments 7410 4.50
Interest on Inter-Corporate Deposit 199.33 246.28
Interest on Long-Term Investments 59.97 44.21
Interest Received from Subsidiary 27.70
Interest on Loan to Employees 2,95 2.36 |
Fair Value Through Profit/Loss-Ind As 3413
Miscellaneous Income 29.54 19.82
Total 398.20 331.55

Employee Benefits Expenses

Particulars

For the Year ended

For the Year ended ‘

March 31,2019 March 31,2018

Salaries. Allowances and Bonus 4.828.35 3.624.80
Gratuity Expenses (Refer Note No 27) 27.43 28,31 I
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 195.87 [83.81 1
Employee Stock Option Scheme 513.87 (31.14)
Staff Welfare Expenses 101.20 70 13

|
Total 5,666.72 3.884.91 |

8\’7/
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

25 Finance Costs

(Rs. in laces)

Particulars

For the Year ended
March 31,2019

For the Year ended
March 31, 2018

Interest expense
Interest on Loan from Bank

- 0.12
Interest - others - 10.30
Other borrowing costs
Processing charges for bank facilities -
Total - 10.42

26 Other Expenses

Particulars

For the Year ended
March 31, 2019

For the Year ended
March 31,2018

Lease Rent for Office Premises, Computers, Furnitures and Plant & Machinery (Refer Note

No 29) 173.13 [49.55
Lease Rent for Parking Yards 621.10 318.71
Electricity Expenses 107.56 105.20
Registration & Filing fees - -
Royalty paid 137.65 108.53
Buyer / Seller facilitation expenses 732.92 832.50
Security charges 442 .24 184.23
Repairs and maintenance

Plant 39.83 0.36

Others 116.34 84.80
Rates and Taxes 16.94 2118
Printing and Stationery 86.72 69.66
Travelling and Conveyance 740.48 020.28
Bank Charges 50.32 44,57
Advertisement 1.36 3.56
Business Promotion 198.07 102.29
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses d 5.00 1.54
Directors Sitting Fees 4.60 30
Insurance 19.32 33.94
Communication Expenses 179.39 [ 73.56
Loss on Sale of Assets (net) 0.01 13,12
Payment to Auditor's
As Auditor

Audit fees 15.00 12.00

Tax Audit fees 4.00 349

Out of pocket 0.26 0,08
In any Other Manner !

Certification .00 (2.01)
Legal and Professional Charges T80.30 | Y000
Miscellaneous Expenses (0.34) 360.49
Total 4,469.48 3,766.65

9\3/ 6)




Shriram Automall India Limited
Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019
(Rs. in lacs)
27 Employee Benefits
Defined Contribution Plan:
The Company makes contributions to Defined Contribution Plans for qualifying employees. Provident Fund are funded and Leave Encashment Benefits are

unfunded in nature, Under the Provident Fund and Leave Encashment Schemes. employees are entitled to receive lump sum benefits. The Company also contributes
to Employees’ State insurance.

The provident fund and the state defined contribution plan are operated by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. Under the schemes. the Company is required
to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefitschemes to tund the benefits.

The Company has recognised the following amounts as expense in the financial statements for the year:

Particulars for the Year ended for the Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2018

Contribution to Provident Fund 167.27 154,57

Contribution to Employees State Insurance 28.60 29.24

Defined Benefit Plans
Gratuity

The Company makes contributions to both Defined Benefit and Defined Contribution Plans for qualifying emplovees, Provident Fund, Gratuity Benefits are funded

and Leave Encashment Benefits are unfunded in nature. Under the Provident Fund, Gratuity and Leave Encashment Schemes. employees are entitled to receive lump
sum benefits. )

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act. 1972, applicable for Indian companies. the Company provides for a lump sum payment 10 eligible employees, at
retirement or termination of employment based on the last drawn salary and years of employment with the Company. The gratuity fund is managed by certain third
party fund managers. The Company’s obligation in respect of the gratuity plan. which is a defined benefit plan. is provided for based on actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit method. The Company recognises actuarial gains and losses immediately in other comprehensive income. net of taxes, Amount recogised in the
statement of profit and loss in respect of gratuity cost (defined benefit plan) is as follows:

(a) Amount recognised in the statement of profit & loss in respect of the defined benefit plan are as follows :

Particulars for the Year ended for the Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Amounts recognised in statement of Profit & Loss in respect
of these defined benefit plans are as follows:
Service Cost
Current Service Cost 28.81 26.34
Net Interest Expense (1.39) 1.55
Past Service Cost 0.42
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or o~ 28.31
loss (A)
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability :
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from demographic -
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in financial 5.07 (14.67)
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising form experience adjustments 16.01 17.34
Return on plan assets exculding interest income 545 (3.72)
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other 26.53 (1.03)
|comprehensive income (B)
Total (A+B) * 53.95 27.26

(1) The current service cost and interest expense for the year are included in the “Employee Benefit Expenses™ line item in the statement of profit & loss under
gratuity expenses.

(i) The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income

(iii) * Net benefit expense is net off benefit obligation of Rs. Nil (March 31,2017 - Rs, 37.65 lacs) and short provision
relieved employees.

s, Nil (March 31,2017 - Rs. .17 lacs) o

,

(b) The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity’s obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is as follows :

As at As at
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

Particulars

Net Asset/(Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet

(Present value of defined benefit obligation) (310.62) (258.04)
Fair value of Plan assets 291,90 275.63
Funded Status Surplus/(Deficit) (18.73) 17.39
Current portion of the above (18.73) 17.59

Non current portion of the above s -




Shriram Automall India Limited
Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(c) Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows :

Particulars

for the Year ended
March 31,2019

for the Year ended
March 31,2018

Change in the obligation during the year ended

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the

258.04 23345

year
Expenses Recognised in Profit and Loss Account

Current Service Cost 28.81 26.34

Interest Expense (Income) 20.33 16.93
Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income Remeasurement -
Past Service Cost 0.42
Liability transferred in/acquisitions 1.46 3.80
(Benefits paid from the fund) (19.10) (25.58)
- Actuarial Gain (Loss) arising from:

i. Demographic Assumptions 0

i. Financial Assumptions 5.07 (14.67)

ii. Experience Adjustments Benefit payments 16,01 17.34
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 310.62 258.04

(d) Change in the Fair value of Plan Assets :

Particulars

for the Year ended
March 31, 2019

for the Year ended
March 31,2018

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the period 275.63 212.06
Interest Income 2172 1540
Contributions by the Employer 19.10 70.04
Benefit Paid from the Fund (19.10) (25.38)
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income (5.45) 3.72
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period 291.90 275.63

(e) Net Interest cost for the period :

Particulars

for the Year ended
March 31, 2019

for the Year ended
Mareh 31,2018

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of the

Period 258.04 233.45
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Period (273.63) (212.06)
Net Liability/{Asset) at the Beginning (17.59) 21.39
Interest Cost 20.33 16.95
Interest Income (21.72) (15.40)
Net Interest Cost for Current Period (1.39) 1.55

(f) Reconcliation of Net Liability / (Asset) :

Particulars

for the Year ended
March 31, 2019

for the Year ended
March 31,2018

Opening Net Liability (17.58) 21.39
Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss 27.42 28.31
Expenses Recognized in OCI 26,53 (1.05)
Net Liability/(Asset) Transfer [n 1.46 3.80
Net (Liability)/Asset Transfer Qut -
Benetit Paid Directly by the Employer -
Employer's Contribution (19.10) (70.04)
Net Liability/(Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet 18.73 (17.38)

(g) Disaggregation of Assets :

Particulars

for the Year ended
March 31,2019

for the Year ended
March 31,2018

Category of Assets -

Insurance Fund

291.90

275.63

L,/k

é,S

S

(Rs. in lacs)




Shriram Automall India Limited

Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(h) Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments :

Particulars for the Year ended for the Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Information Required Under Ind As 19
1. (Present value of defined benefit obligation) (310.62) (258.04)
2. Accumulated Benefits Obligation
3. Five Year Payouts
1st Following year 23.45 21.52
2nd Following year 20.67 16.80
3rd Following year 22.40 17.80
4th Following year 20.62 19.03
5th Following year 23.24 17.58
Sum of years 6 to 10 141,54 115,39
Sum of years 11 and above 469.26 411,80
Prescribed contribution for next vear (12 Months) 11.23
Vested benefit Obligation as on March 31, 2018
(i) The principal assumptions used for the purpose of actuarial valuation were as follows :
Gratuity
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Expected return on Plan assets 7.69% 7.88%
Rate of discounting 7.69% 7.88%
Expected rate of salary increase 5.00% 5.00%

Rate of employee turnover

For service 4 vears and

below 10.00% p.a. and

for service 3 years and
above 5.00% p.a.

For service 4 years and

below 10,00% p.a, and

for service 3 vears and
above 5.00% p.a

Mortality rate during employment

Indian Assured Lives
mortality (2006-08)

Indian Assured Lives
mortality (2006-08)

Mortality rate after employment

N.A,

NA,

(j) Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase rate and mortality.

(Rs. in lacs)

The sensitivity

analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions cceurring at the end of the reporting period while

holding all other assumptions constant :

Sensitivity Analysis

Rate of discounting

Expected rate of salary increase

Rate of employee turnover

2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18
Difference due to increase in rate by 1% (25.20) (21.03) 20,18 24.83 6.13 3.78
Difference due 1o decrease in rate by 1% 29.14 2436 (26.03) (21.7%) (6.92) (6.52)

- a

L U/

4
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

{Rs. in lacs)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligations as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated,

Furthermore . in presenting the above sensitivity analysis the present value of defined benelit obligation has been caleulated using the projected unit credit method at
the end of the reporting period which is the same as that applied in caleulating the defined benefit obligation liabilits recognised in the balunce sheet.

. . For the vear ended For the year ended
HpEtihi A st March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Defined Benefit Obligation (310.62) (258.04)
Funded Status Surplus/(Deficit) (18.73) 17.59
Experience adjustment on plan liabilities [(Gain)/Loss] 16.01 17.34

This plan typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk. interest rate risk. longevity risk and salary risk.

Investment risk

This may arise from velatility in asset values due 1o market fluctuations and impairment of assets due Lo credit losses.
These Plans primarily invest in debt instruments such as Government securities and highly rated corporate honds — the
valuation of which is inversely proportional to the interest rate movements,

Interest risk

The present value of Defined Benefit Plans liability is determined using the discount rate based on the market vields
prevailing at the end of reporting period on Government bonds, A decrease in vields will increase the fund liabilitics
and vice-versa,

Longevity risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated hy reference to the hest estimates of the maortality of
plan participants both during and after their employment. Mortality tables as per Indian Assured Lives Mortahty (20004
08) ultimate is used for during the employment and post retirement respeetivelv. An inerease i the life expectancy ol
the plan participants will increase the plan's liability

Salary risk

The present value of the Delined Benelit Plan liability is caleulated with reference to the future salaries of participants
under the Plan. Increase in salary due to adverse inflationary pressures might lead to higher liabilities.




Shriram Automall India Limited
Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

28 Segment Reporting

The Company operates in a single reportable segment. which has similar risks and rewards for the purpose of Indian Accounting Standard 108 on
"Operating segments". The Company operates in single geographical segment i.c. domestic.

29 Leases
In case of assets taken on lease

The Company has taken various office premises. furniture and fixtures. computers and plant and cquipment under operating lease. All these lease
payment are cancellable in nature and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreed terms. The lease payments recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss are Rs. 173.13 lacs (March 31, 2018: Rs. 149.55 lacs). Certain agreements provide for cancellation by either party or certain
agreements contains clause for escalation and renewal of agreements. There are no restrictions imposed by lease arrangements.
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Shriram Automall India Limited
Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

31  Contingent Liabilities not provided for

(Rs. in lacs)

(Appeals)

Particulars As at March 18, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Disputed Income tax demand on account of Royalty and interest as per assessment order 20.77 19.84
Disputed Service tax demand where the company is in the process of filing appeal before 48.64 48,64
CESTAT. The amount of interest on the said demand is yet to be determined by the department. ' '
VAT demand where the Company has filed appeal before Deputy Commissioner of Sales Tax 169,12 169.12
oL Al 169,12

Future cash outflows in respect of above are determinable only on receipt of judgements /decisions pending with various forums/authoritics, The
Company is of the opinion that above demands are not sustainable and expects to succeed in its appeals. No tax expense has been accrued in the
financial statements for the tax demand raised. The management believes that the ultimate outcome of this proceeding will not have a material adverse

effect on the company's financial position and results of operations.

The Company has received show cause notice demanding service tax on income from refurbishment of vehicles for the periods April 2011 upto June
2012 amounting to Rs. 39.28 lacs. irregular availment of input tax credit amounting to Rs. 25.80 lacs lor the period April 2011 1o March 2013, service
tax on reimbursement expenses received amounting to Rs. 4.83 lacs for the period April 2013 to May 2014 and the same is contested by the Company

The Company has provided for service tax demands on refurbishment income and reimbursement of expenses including interest thereon. The
Management believes that the ultimate outcome of this proceeding will not have a material effect on the Company's linancial position and results of

operations.

Commitments not provided for

As at Vlarch 18, 2019

As at March 31,2018

Estimated Amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account

1
233

L

11.99

32 Earnings per share

for the Year ended

for the Year ended

Rarticilan March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (A) 2,333.73 2;037.22
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating basic EPS (in lacs) (B) 300.00 300.00
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating diluted EPS (in lacs) (C) 300.00 300.00
Basic earnings per equity share (in Rupees) (nominal value Rs. 10 per share) (A)/(B) 8.45 6.79
Diluted earnings per equity share (in Rupees) (nominal value Rs. 10 per share) (A)/(C) 8.45 6.79

g\m/
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33

34

a)
b)

(Rs. in lacs)

Based on the intimation received by the Company, some of the suppliers have confirmed 10 be registered under “The Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development (‘MSMED") Act, 2006™. Accordingly. the disclosures relating Lo amounts unpaid as at the year ended together with interest

paid /payable are furnished below:

Particulars

As at March 18, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

The principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of the year

The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of the year

The amount of interest paid in terms of Section 16, along with the amount of payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointment day during the year

The amount of interest due and pavable for the year of delay in making payment (which have been
paid but beyond the appointed day during the vear) but without adding the interest specilied under
this Act

The amount of interest accrued during the year and remaining unpaid at the end of the year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years. until such
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium
Enterprise Development Act, 2006

Details of CSR expenses

Particulars

for the Year ended
March 31,2019

for the Year ended
March 31, 2018

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year

35.65 22.55
Amount spent on the projects or programs:
(1) Direct expenditure on projects or programs - R
(2) Overheads 5.00 |.54

Total

n |t
I
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35

Share - based Payments

(Rs. in lacs)

The Company has reserved 26,08,696 Equity Shares for issue under the employee stock option scheme 2018 out of which 19.79.348 Equity Shares are
granted to employees as on 31st March 2019 as detailed hereunder:

(a) Financial years ended 31 March, 2019, the information with respect to Share Based Payments is disclosed as under -

(b)

(©

(d)

Plan [ Plan 11 Plan 111
Date of Grant 27-Apr-18 16-Aug-18 16-Aug-18
Date of Board/Committee Approval 20-Apr-18 14-Aug-18 14-Aug-18
Date of Shareholder’s approval 27-Apr-18 16-Aug-18 16-Aug-18
No. of Options under the Scheme 978261 782609 847826
Number of Options granted 675000 782609 521739
Method of Settlement (Cash/Equity) Equity Equity Equity
Vesting period 25% each year after two | 100% afler one vear of’ 847876 *

years of Grant

Grant

*326087 options will be vested if Shriram Automall India Limited including all its present and future subsidiaries achieves target of consolidated
EBITDA of Rs.100 crores in a Financial Year on or before 315t March 2024. Vesting would be on the date on which SAMIL achieves the above Larget
for the balance 5.21,739 Equity Shares are vesting 25% each every year after one year of Grant.

Stock Options granted

Effect of the employee share-based payment plans on the profit and loss account and on its financial position:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

Total compensation cost pertaining to employee share-
based payment plan (entirely equity-settled)

NA

4.28

Details of No. of Options Outstanding during is as u

nder:

Particulars

No. of Share Options

Weighted average
exercise prices of
share options

Qutstanding at the beginning of the period

Granted during the period 19.79.348 -
Forfeited during the period - -
Exercised during the period - -
Expired during the period .

Qutstanding at the end of the period 19.79,348 -

Exercisable at the end of the period

For Share options outstanding at the end of the period, the range of exercise

prices and weighted average remaining contractual life:

Plan | Plan 11 Plan 111
Exercise Price 50.00 10.00 10.00
Weighted Average remaining contractual life 4 Years | Year 3 Years

() The Black-Scholes-Merton model. named after it's co-creators, was designed by Fischer Black and Myron Scholes in the early 1970s. which 1s
considered to be a major breakthrough in the pricing of stock options. The two critical assumptions which form the basis of Black-Scholes model are
near-perfect markets and noarbitrage (or perfect hedge). The BSM model can determine the value of any option using the [actors and inputs as

discussed below.

Factors determining ESOP value

Market price of the share: Since options derive value from its underlying asset. a change in the price ol the share will afTect the value of the option.
Consequently, the value of the option will increase with an increase in the value of the share.

Volatility in the price of the share: The value of the option will be higher with an increase in volatility and vice versa

Riskless interest rate corresponding to the life of the option: The value of the option will be higher il the interest rate is higher.

Exercise Price: The value of the option will be lower if the exercise price is higher compared to the current market price of the share and vice-versa,

Duration for which the option remains open: The value of the option will be higher i it is open for a longer length of time and vice versa.

stock price.

L
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(Rs. in lacs)

Assumptions underlving the BSM model

Efficient Markets: As per this assumption, people cannol consistently predict the direction of an individual stock or the market.
Returns are lognormally distributed: As per this assumption. returns on the underlying stock are normally distributed

Interest rates remain constant and known: To represent a constant and known rate. the Black-Scholes model uses the risk-free rate,

(f) Following assumptions are being considered for valuation purpose:

Market price of the share: We have considered the fair value of equity shares using the acquisition transaction of SAMIL by MXC, which is in
proximity to the grant date. We have determined the spot price by applying controlling premium as appropriate. Transaction consideration, stake
acquired and number of shares are as provided to us by the Management. We have adjusted the gross value with the controlling premium. as we
understand the price net of controlling premium to be appropriate for the purpose of ESOP valuation. We have considered control premium based on
the report *Control Premium in India” for the Auto Sector, as published by Ernst & Young in 2017, Based on the above computation, spol price for
ESOP valuation is Rs. 71.56/- per share.

Volatility in the price of the share: Volatility has been computed using the weekly share price or relevant life of the option of listed comparable
company - Ritchie Bros. Auctioneers Incorporated (RBA), as of the grant date, Management has provided us with the name of listed comparable
company. We have obtained the share price data of the said comparable from www.yahoofinance.com.

Riskless interest rate corresponding to the life of the option: We have considered Government of India bond vield for the relevant life of the option
as of the grant date for the time period determined by us.

Exercise Price: As per the relevant ESOP Schemes made available to us. exercise price is the grant price pavable by an employee in arder 1o excreise
the options granted to him in pursuance of the relevant ESOP. Exercise Price has been considered as provided to us by the Management,

Duration for which the option remains open: As per the ESOP Schemes provided 1o us. all live options will lapse at the end of five vears from the
date of vesting of such options. Hence. we have considered the duration using the formula as prescribed by Staft Accounting Bulletin (SAB) - 107
considering that the employee can exercise the option anytime during this exercise period.

Dividends: Management has indicated that no dividend payout is expected. Hence, we have considered dividend 10 be zero for valuation purpose.

Annual Volatility: Volatility has been calculated based on weekly share prices of listed comparable company as discussed earlier,

(g) No share-based payment arrangements were modified during the vear.
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Shriram Automall India Limited

Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
g (Rs. in Lacs)
36  Financial Instruments and related Disclosures

Capital Management -

The Company is cash surplus and has no capital other than Equity. The Company is not exposed to any regulatory imposed capital requirements,

The cash surpluses are currently invested in income generating debt instruments (including through mutual funds) and money market mstruments
depending on economic conditions in line with the guidelines set out by the Management. Salety of capital is of prime importance 1o ensure
availability of capital for operations. Investment objective is 1 provide safety and adequate return on the surplus funds. Company does not borrow
funds unless circumstances require.

The Company’s financial strategy aims to support ils strategic priorities and provide adequate capital to its businesses for growth and creation of
sustainable stakeholder value, The Company funds its operations through internal accruals. The Company aims al maintaining a strong capital base
largely towards supporting the future growth of its businesses as a going concern,

2 Categories of Financial Instruments -
a) Financial Assets

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Particulars FV Ar‘lmrtlscd FVOCI FVPL Fy .-\ITI()I'H:\‘L‘L] FVOCI FVPL
Cost Cost

- Investments in Equity Instruments 1.304.50 - 1.300.010)
- Investment in Mutual Funds 3.148.76 - 250.00
- Other Financial Assets 90.11 - 69 89
- Security Deposits 139.87 - - 83.23 - -

- Trade Receivables 855.97 - - 817.40 - -

- Cash and Cash Equivalents 635.25 - - 566.12 - .

- Other Financial Assets (Fixed deposit with
banks where original maturity is more than - - - 0.29 - -
12-months)

- Investment in Sub - Debts 369.67 - - 400,68 - -
- Inter Corporate Deposit 2.595.00 - - 2.835.00 - -
- Advance Recoverable from Subsidiary 323.59 -

- Loans to Employees 20.29 - - 16.72 - -

b) Financial Liabilities

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Particulars FV .A|310|'t|sed FVOCI FVPL FV ,\1?1m'liscd FVOCl FVPL
Cost Cost
- Borrowings - - -
- Trade Payables 5,192.41 - - 4,562.91 B -
- Other Financials Liabilities 2 - -

¢) Financial Risk Management Objectives

The Company has a system-based approach to risk management, anchored to policies and procedures and internal financial controls aimed at
ensuring early identification, evaluation and management of key financial risks (such as market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk) that may arise as
a consequence of its business operations as well as its investing and financing activities. Accordingly. the Company’s risk management [ramework
has the objective of ensuring that such risks are managed within acceptable and approved risk parameters in a disciplined and consistent manner
and in compliance with applicable regulation. It also seeks 1o drive accountability in this regard.

i) Liquidity Risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management of the Company’s short-, medium- and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing lacilities. by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows. and by matching the maturity profiles of [inangsl assets and liabilitjes
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a) Liquidity risk tables

The following tables detail the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest payments:

- Due in Due in Carrying
Particulars AErYIng
Ist year 1+ years amount

March 31, 2019
Financial Liabilities
- Borrowings -
- Trade Payables
- Other Financials Liabilities
March 31, 2018
Financial Liabilities
- Borrowings -

- Trade Payables 4,562.91 - 4,562.91
- Other Financials Liabilities -
The Company' current assets aggregate to -
As at March 31, 2019 8.198.92
As at March 31, 2018 4,909.45

Further the Company's total equity stands as follows -
As at March 31, 2019 9.515.08
As at March 31, 2018 6.486.28

Considering the above circumstances, liquidity risk or the risk that the Company may not be able to settle or meet its obligations as they become due
does not exist.

ii) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will Mluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market

risk comprises three types of risks: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk. However company is not exposed to any such risk except for
the following -

The Company is not an active investor in equity markets: it continues to hold certain investments in equity for long term which are accordingly
measured at fair value through Profit or loss. The value of investments in such equity instruments as at March 31. 2018 is Rs. 1.300.00 lacs (March
31,2017 - Nil : April 01, 2015 - Nil). Accordingly. fair value fluctuations arising from market volatility is recognised in Statement of Profit or loss.
As the Company is debt-free, the exposure to interest rate risk from the perspective of Financial Liabilities is negligible. Further. reasury activities.
focused on managing investments in debt instruments, are centralised and administered under a set of approved policies and procedures guided by
the tenets of liquidity, safety and returns. This ensures that investments are only made within acceptable risk parameters after due evaluation,

The Company’s investments are predominantly held in Sub-debts. bonds/debentures. money market and debt mutual funds. Mark to market
movements in respect of the Company’s investments in Sub-debts, bonds / debentures that are held at amortised cost are temporary and gel
recouped through fixed coupon accruals. Fixed deposits are held with highly rated banks and have a short tenure and are not subject 10 interest rule
volatility.

The Company also invests in mutual fund schemes of leading fund houses. Such investments are susceptible to market price risk that arise mainly
from changes in interest rate which may impact the return and value of such investments. However. given the relatively short tenure of underlving
portfolio of the mutual fund schemes in which the Company has invested, such price risk is not significant.

iii) Credit Risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty may default on its contractual obligations leading to a financial loss to the Company, Credit risk
primarily arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments. financial assets measured at amortised cost. lnancial assets

measured at fair value through profit or loss and trade receivables,
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iii) a) Credit Risk Management

In regard to Trade receivables, which are typically unsecured. credit risk is managed through credit approvals. establishing credit limits and
continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to whom credit is extended in the normal course ol business, The Company follows a
‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. Accordingly, impairment loss allowance is recognised
based on lifetime expected credit losses at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. Expected credit losses of financial assets receivable
in the next 12 months are estimated on the basis of historical data, provided the Company has reasonable and supportable data. On such an
assessment the expected losses are nil or negligible, as evidenced in the table below. and hence no further provision than that already made is
considered necessary.

For other financial assets the Company has an investment policy which allows the Company 1o invest only with counterparties having a good credit
rating. The Company reviews the creditworthiness of these counterparties on an on-going basis, Counter party himits maybe updated as and when

required subject to approval of Board of Directors,

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - Trade Receivables

Particulars Amount
Loss allowance as on March 31, 2017 56.20
Changes in loss allowance 17.85
Loss allowance as on March 31, 2018 74.05
Changes in loss allowance (50.67)
Loss allowance as on March 31, 2019 23.38

Fair Value Measurement
1) Fair Value hierarchy

Fair value of the financial instruments is classified in various fair value hierarchies based on the lollowing three levels:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted price included within level | that are observable for the asset or liabilitv, either directly (ie, as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices).

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using market approach and valuation techniques which
maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specitic estimates. [ significant inputs required 10 fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2,

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
1f one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data. the fair value is determined using generally accepted pricing models
based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparty

The fair value of trade receivables, trade payables and other Current financial assets and liabilities is considered 1o be equal ta the carrving amounts
of these items due to their short-term nature. Where such items are Non-current in nature, the same has been classified as Level 3 and fair value
determined using discounted cash flow basis. Similarly, unquoted equity instruments where most recent information to measure air value is
insufficient, or if there is a wide range of possible fair value measurements, cost has been considered as the best estimate of fair value,

Fair Value Fair Value

Particulars Hierarchy As at March | Asat March

Lieval, 31,2019 31,2018
Financial Assets
Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
- Investments in Equity Instruments Level 3 1.304.30 1.300.00
- Investment in Mutual Funds Level | 3,148.76 230.00 c‘lp
- Other Financial Assets Level 3 96.11 69.89
Measured at Amortised Cost \7 /
- Security Deposits Level 3 139.87 83.23
- Trade Receivables Level 3 855.97 817.40
- Cash and Cash Equivalents Level 3 635.25 56012 /\
- Other Financial Assets (Fixed deposit with banks where i 0.29 ' /
original maturity is more than 12-months) Level 3 T (_——//
- Investment in Sub - Debts Level 3 369.67 400.68
- Inter Corporate Deposit Level 3 2,595.00 2,835.00
- Advance Recoverable from Subsidiary Level 3 323.59 -
- Loans to Employees Level 3 20.29 10.48
Financial Liabilities
Measured at Amortised Cost
- Borrowings Level 3 - -
- Trade Payables Level 3 4.562.91 4362 91

- Other Financials Liabilities Level 3 -
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37

Tax Expense

(Rs. in lacs)

Particulars

For the vear ended
March 31, 2019

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

Current Tax

943.18 1.080.47
Deferred Tax 47.07 (5.35)
Total Tax Expense / (Income) 990.25 1,075.12

Current Tax

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31,2019

For the year ended
March 31,2018

Profit Before Tax

3.523.98 3.012.54
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 29.12% (Previous year - 34,608%) 1.026.18 1.077.12
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income 54.49 82.01
Rent escalation 4.94 [.33
Leave Encashment disallowed 6.38 2.22
Depreciation as per Books 30.63 29.64
Gratuity disallowed under section 40 A (7) 7.99 18.57
CSR expenses 1.40 V.33
Loss on Sale of Assets (net) 0.08 4.60
Provision for Doubtful trade receivables - 25.09
Amortisation of deferred rent expenses (IND AS) 3.00
Tax effect of amounts which are deductible (non taxable) in calculating taxable income 137.50 78.66
Profit on Sale of Assets 0.08 0.06
Depreciation as per IT rates 41.72 3540
Gratuity paid 5.36 24.92
Others 2,78 18.28
Adhoc provison disallowed earlier now allowed 37.30 -
Effects of Deferred Tax 47.07 (5.35)
Tax Charge for the year 990.25 1,075.12
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

38 Previous year Comparatives

The figures for the previous year have been regrouped and reclassified. wherever necessary to conform to current year's classilication.

As per our report of even date
For G. D. Apte & Co.
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